CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the **Staffing Committee** held on Thursday, 25th April, 2019 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

PRESENT

Councillor B Moran (Chairman)

Councillors G Baggott, M Deakin, D Flude, L Jeuda and JP Findlow (substitute for Cllr R Bailey)

Officers in attendance

Kath O'Dwyer, Acting Chief Executive Sara Barker, Head of Strategic HR Sarah Allcock, Senior Manager Work Force Development Emma Morris, Interim Organisational Development Manager Sara Duncalf, Acting HR Business Partner Suzanne Antrobus, Team Manager, Legal Rachel Graves, Democratic Services Officer

30 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Councillors Rachel Bailey, Gary Barton and Mike Parsons.

31 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillors D Flude and L Jeuda declared they were retired members of UNISON.

32 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

There were no members of the public present.

33 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 24 January 2019 be confirmed as a correct record.

34 HR AND HEALTH AND SAFETY - QUARTER 4 UPDATE REPORT

The Committee considered a report on the progress with the Council's People Plan 2018/20.

The report provided details on the progress on the areas of work identified for three objectives linked to the Brighter Future Together Whole Organisation Transformation Programme.

The report also provided details on HR Performance Data for Quarter 4, which included headcount and employee turnover, voluntary redundancy and working days lost to sickness absence, and also a health and safety summary of accidents and incidents.

It was reported that to reflect the context of the HR team plan within the wider Workforce Strategy, the People Plan would be renamed the Workforce Strategy Action Plan.

Work on the HR policy review was progressing with 10 policies having been agreed with CLT, the Trade Unions and approved by the Portfolio Holder. New policies for Disciplinary, Grievance and Dignity at Work had been launched and were supported by e-learning modules for staff, supervisors and managers.

The current number of days lost to sickness for 2018/19 was 10.31 days against the 10 day target, which was lower than every previous 12 month period between April 2011 and March 2018.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

35 BRIGHTER FUTURE TOGETHER (CULTURE) PROGRAMME

The Committee considered a report which provided an update on the Brighter Future Together (Culture) Programme.

The overall delivery against the planned phases of the programme had been successfully completed, as detailed in Appendix 1 to the Report.

Ten of the twelve recommendations from the Local Government Association report had been completed. Details of progress on these recommendations was detailed in Appendix 2.

A second pulse survey had been carried out between 25 February and 8 March 2019 with the results to be reviewed and any actions arising included in the embedding plan. The progress of the Programme would be tested through the programme score card and with a full employee survey later in the year.

The successful completion of Staffing Committee's assurance role was duly noted.

RESOLVED:

That the very good continued progress on the Brighter Future Together (Culture) Programme be noted.

36 WELLBEING IN WORK STRATEGY 2018-19

The Committee considered a report on the Wellbeing in Work Strategy 2018-19.

A Wellbeing in Work week had been held in March, which had been well attended with over 600 staff taking part. Staff were invited to undertake a health check measuring blood pressure, hydration, visceral fat levels and information and advice was provided on a range of health and wellbeing topics. Further events would be scheduled for September so that staff are able to track their progress.

The Wellbeing in Work Staff Forums continued to meet, with the Forum in Sandbach being the most proactive. There had been limited participation in the Crewe and Macclesfield Forums and support would be provided in 2019/20 to help staff develop initiatives to improve the environment and wellbeing in these buildings.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

37 HR WORKFORCE STRATEGY

The Committee considered a report on the HR Workforce Strategy.

The Workforce Strategy set out the context and purpose in relation to realising the vision for workplace culture whilst delivering the strategic outcomes along with highlighting the links to the vision for the Council, the Corporate Plan, transformation plan and other business strategies.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

38 INTERIM APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR OF GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE

The Committee considered a report which detailed the appointment of the Interim Director of Governance and Compliance and received a verbal report on the recruitment of the Director of Governance and Compliance.

The new Corporate Services structure came into effect on 1 April 2019 and included a new post of Director of Governance and Compliance, whose role included that of monitoring officer. As the appointment of monitoring officer would normally be made by Council, which would not be meeting until 22 May 2019, the Acting Chief Executive under the urgency procedure had taken the decision on the appointment of the Interim Director of Governance and Compliance. There would have been an unacceptable risk to the Council to be without a monitoring officer for the period 1 April and 22 May 2019.

The Chairman gave an update on the appointment process for the Director of Governance and Compliance following the interviews undertaken by the Staffing Committee on 10 April 2019 and reported that the usual formalities for the preferred candidate were now being completed on a confidential basis. It was expected that the preferred candidate would be recommended to Council on 22 May 2019 as per the process for a Statutory Officer.

RESOLVED: That

- 1 that the urgent decision in relation to the appointment of the Interim Director of Governance and Compliance be noted and be reported to Council on 22 May 2019; and
- 2 the verbal update on the appointment of the Director of Governance and Compliance be noted.

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 3.27 pm

Councillor B Moran (Chairman)